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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS 

EASTERN DIVISION 
 
KRENARE THACI, 
 
   Plaintiff, 
 
 v. 
 
TEXTURA CORPORATION, 
 
   Defendant. 

 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

 
 
  
 
Case No.  
 
 

COMPLAINT 
 
 Plaintiff, KRENARE THACI, by and through her attorneys, The Coffey Law 

Office, P.C., states as and for her Complaint against Defendant TEXTURA 

CORPORATION, as follows: 

Nature of Case 

1. Plaintiff brings this action against Defendant to recover damages proximately 

caused by Defendant’s discriminatory removal of her from her position and/or demotion 

and termination of her employment in violation of violation of the Pregnancy 

Discrimination Act amendment to Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. 

Section 2000e(k) (hereafter the “PDA”). 

Jurisdiction and Venue 

2. This Court has original jurisdiction over Plaintiff’s claims under 28 U.S.C. §§ 

1331, 1337 and 1343.  

3. Venue is proper in this Court pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391 and 42 U.S.C. § 

2000e-5(f)(3) because Defendant’s illegal acts complained of herein took place at 
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Defendant’s facility located in Deerfield Illinois, Cook County, within the geographical 

jurisdictional boundaries of this Court. 

4. On or about May 11, 2015, Plaintiff filed a timely charge of illegal discrimination 

in violation of the PDA with the local district office of the EEOC.  On October 27, 2015, 

the EEOC issued its Notice of Right to Sue, a copy of which is attached hereto.  This 

Complaint is being filed within 90 days of Plaintiff’s receipt of the EEOC Right to Sue 

Notice.       

The Parties 

5. Plaintiff, Krenare Thaci, is a female residing at all relevant times within the 

geographical jurisdiction of this Court. 

6. Defendant, Textura Corporation (hereafter “Textura”), is a foreign corporation 

licensed to do business in Illinois, and operating at a facility located in Deerfield Illinois, 

Cook County, within the geographical jurisdictional boundaries of this Court. 

7. Textura, on information and belief, employees in excess of 50 workers and is 

thus an “employer” within the meaning of the PDA and Title VII. 

Facts Common to All Counts 

8. Krenare began her employment with Textura in August 2013 in the position of 

Manager of Association Relationships. 

9. In her position as Manager of Association Relationships, Krenare’s primary duty 

was to develop and further Textura’s relationships with its existing partners, including 

construction industry associations, and to sign-up new partners.  
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10. In December 2014, Textura Sr. V.P. and Chief Legal Officer, Ryan Lawrence, 

notified Krenare that she would receive an $8,000 performance bonus for her work in 

2014. 

11. In January 2015, Krenare told Mr. Lawrence, that she was pregnant and 

struggling with severe morning sickness. 

12. Prior to telling Mr. Lawrence that she was pregnant, Textura had not issued 

Krenare any discipline, or notified her that her job performance needed improvement. 

13. Prior to telling Mr. Lawrence that she was pregnant, Textura did not notify 

Krenare that her job performance was dissatisfactory. 

14. On February 18, 2015, Mr. Lawrence, without advance notice, notified Krenare 

that she was being removed from her Manager of Association Relationships position. 

15. In their February 18, 2015, meeting, Lawrence stated to Krenare that: 

a. she was being transferred to a new role in the company reporting to the 

Director of Marketing; 

b. she would have a couple months in the new position to justify her salary; and, 

c. he was distributing her former job duties to several other employees. 

16. In their February 18, 2015, meeting, Lawrence did not tell Krenare what job 

duties she would be performing in the new role. 

17. In their February 18, 2015, meeting, Lawrence clearly implied that Krenare’s  

employment was at risk if she did not perform well in the new role. 

18. As of February 18, 2015, the new position that Textura transferred Krenare into 

did not have a job title. 
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19.  As of February 18, 2015, the new position that Lawrence transferred Krenare 

into did not have a written job description. 

20. Textura was not aware that any employee assigned to perform Krenare’s former 

job duties was pregnant.  

21. Krenare thereafter began working in the new position. 

22. The new position involved significantly different job responsibilities than 

Krenare’s former position. 

23. The primary job duty of the new position was drafting educational blog content. 

24. Krenare had no prior experience drafting educational blog content. 

25. English was Krenare’s fourth language. 

26. The majority of the job duties assigned to Krenare in the new position were intern 

and/or entry staff-level duties.  

27. In the new position, Krenare’s skills and experience went largely unused and 

wasted. 

28.  The new position presented Krenare with significantly reduced future career 

prospects. 

29. On April 7, 2015, Respondent terminated Krenare’s employment. 

30. Krenare’s job performance at all relevant times met or exceeded Textura’s 

legitimate expectations. 

31. On information and belief Textura has treated other female and/or pregnant 

employees including Erin Morris and Maggie Surowka, less favorably than similarly 

situated male and/or non-pregnant employees.  
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Textura Transferred Krenare and then Terminated her Employment 
in Violation of the PDA 

 
32. Under the PDA, it is illegal for an employer like Textura to take materially adverse 

job action against employees like Krenare because of pregnancy, childbirth and/or 

related medical conditions.  See the PDA amendment to Title VII of the Civil Rights Act 

of 1964, 42 U.S.C. Section 2000e(k). 

33. Title VII also makes it unlawful for an employer such as Textura to limit, 

segregate, or classify an employee such as Krenare in any way that would deprive or 

tend to deprive her of employment opportunities, or otherwise adversely affect her 

status as an employee because of her pregnancy.  42 U.S.C §§ 2000e-2(a)(2). 

34. As described above, Textura’s February 2015 transfer of Krenare out of her 

position of Manager of Association Relationships was a material adverse employment 

action. 

35. Textura transferred Krenare out of her position of Manager of Association 

Relationships and then terminated her employment because of her pregnancy, 

childbirth and/or related medical conditions in violation of the DA. 

36. As a direct and proximate result of Textura’s illegal discrimination as described 

above, Krenare has suffered mental and physical pain and anguish and loss of 

enjoyment of life, a loss of wages, including, but not limited to, salary, bonuses, a loss of 

employment benefits and other pecuniary and non-pecuniary damages. 

37. Textura knew that its acts and omissions as described above were prohibited by 

the PDA, or acted with reckless disregard to that possibility. 
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Prayer for Relief 

 WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, KRENARE THACI, respectfully requests that this Court 

enter judgment in his favor and against Defendant TEXTURA CORPORATION, as 

follows: 

A. Order Defendant to make her whole by paying her appropriate back pay 
and reimbursement for lost pension, social security and other benefits and out-of-pocket 
expenses, plus pre-judgment interest in an amount to be shown at trial; 

 
B. Order Defendant to immediately reinstate her to her former position or one  

comparable thereto; or, in the alternative, order Defendant to pay her an appropriate 
amount of front pay; 

 
C. Order Defendant to pay her compensatory damages in the maximum 

amount allowable under the law; 
 
D. Order Defendant to pay her punitive damages in the maximum amount 

allowable under the law.   
 
E. Order Defendant to pay her costs incurred in bringing this action, 

including, but not limited to, expert witness fees and reasonable attorneys’ fees; 
 
F. Try all issues of fact to a jury; and, 
 
G. Grant such other relief as the Court deems just. 

 
     Respectfully submitted, 
     Plaintiff, KRENARE THACI, 
 
 
     By:     /s/ Timothy J. Coffey_________              
      Timothy J. Coffey 
      The Coffey Law Office, P.C. 
      Attorneys for KRENARE THACI 
      1805 North Mill Street, Suite E 
      Naperville, Illinois 60563 
      (312) 627-9700     
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